
CITY OF BETHLEHEM 
 

INTER DEPARTMENTAL CORRESPONDENCE 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  J. William Reynolds - Mayor 
  Tad J. Miller - City Clerk 
  Members of City Council 
   
FROM: George Yasso 
  City Controller 
 
SUBJECT: Quarterly Report - Controller (January–March 2022) 
 
DATE:              May 04, 2022 
I am submitting for your review, a summary of the financial expenditures and contractual 
commitments made by the City of Bethlehem in the first quarter of 2022. 
 
Attachment #1 provides for the cash expended and is broken down by the following categories: 
 

o Checks Dispersed 
o P-Card(s) 
o General/Payroll Accounts (approximate) 
o Other Checking Accounts 

 
Total Cash Outlay for the quarter was $26,991,131 with $13,001,842 going towards the total city 
payroll. This does not include escrow/trust payments. 
 
In addition to the financial information highlighting the cash that was paid out in the first quarter, 
there were 603 Purchase Orders processed and 1,061 clearing account checks sent out.  There are 
significantly less checks through the other checking accounts due to money going through the 
regular Accounts Payable checking account. Escrow checks were $84,796 along with $1,328 P-
card amounts. These are not included in the totals on Attachment #1. 
 
Attachment #2 provides the quarterly statistics on individual Purchase Orders issued, Blanket 
Purchase Orders, Contract Purchase Orders, and Confirming Purchase Order statistics. Purchase 
Orders now include new/amended contracts and many of the blanket Purchase Orders from 
various departments are now being consolidated under one blanket.  Also, the information for 
non-general funds is included for consistency with Attachment #1. 
 
We continue to attend Bethlehem Authority meetings, as well as the majority of City Council and 
Council Committee meetings as appropriate.  The Controller’s office is also involved in the 
continuing CI Purchasing Committee Meetings, Safety Committee Meetings and meetings to 
revamp the contracting process. 
 
The Controller’s office has a rotating seat on the Pension Board which usually meets the first 
Friday of every month. All board meetings to date have been attended.  The Controller’s office 
continues to discuss contracts and purchase orders of concern with the Solicitor’s office and 
Administration.   
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In addition, the Controller’s office reviews the quarterly receipts for gaming revenue received 
from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  First quarter receipts total $2,458,658.  Receipts are 
approximately $217,231 ahead of last year for the same period. 
  
Our office continues to review any outstanding Miscellaneous Accounts Receivables and discuss 
with departments as needed (ongoing).    
 
Please review the list below of other activities: 

Qtr. # Qtr. $ 
Audited General Account Checks (1) 1061 $9,228,299 
Purchasing Card Transactions (1)               763 $221,224 
Other Acct. Checks & Transactions     29 $4,625,890 
Reviewed Petty Cash Reimbursements   12 $3,990 
Employee Mileage & Expense                      31 $2,776 
Reviewed Purchase Orders (see attached)                                                         603 $19,782,923 
          
Reviewed & approved contracts/     
     Agreements (outlined below)  113 $7,783,636 
Construction and Related Contracts (2) 13 $4,740,853 
Employment Related Contracts 35 $1,485,882 
Services & Goods Contracts 32 $1,081,654 
Grants & Revenue Agreements 5 $51,564 
Use Permits, Developer & Other  28 $423,683 
     Agreements (3)     

 
 
(1) These also include escrow checks /transactions.      
(2) Outside Engineering, Bidding and Construction oversight are now included with Construction                           
      Contracts. 
(3)  Developer agreements may include amounts for letters of credit that may not be used with an 
       Agreement. See information below: 
 
 
 
 
 
Specific detailed back-up on the information provided is available upon request.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Michele Liberto or myself in the Controller’s Office at 
extension 7120. 
 
Cc:  Eric Evans, Business Administrator            Mark Sivak, Director of Budget & Finance 
Linnea Lazarchak, Financial Services Director  Sandra Steidel, Director of Purchasing       
Judy Kelechava, Assistant City Clerk 
 

Date 
Executed Developer Agreement 

Letter of Credit 
Amount 

2/24/2022 
Polk Street Parking 

Garage $281,496 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 


